
 PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL  
 CITY COMMITTEE 
 MEETING OF MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2009 
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL 
CITY COMMITTEE, HELD ON MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2009 IN THE PRESCOTT CITY 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT PRESCOTT CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ, 
PRESCOTT ARIZONA 
       
 1.  Call to Order  
 
 Chairman Gilliss called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m. 
 
 MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Gilliss; Nancy Burgess; Deborah Thurston; 

Elisabeth Ruffner, Don Shaffer; Karen Churchill; Dave Maurer; Patti Ezell (arrived 
at 1:39 p.m.). 

 
 MEMBERS ABSENT: Councilman Bell; Lindsey Mills. 
 
 ADVISORS PRESENT:  Bill Thompson (Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University); 

Mary Lin (Prescott College). 
 
 STAFF PRESENT: Liz Burke; Becky Garvin.  

 
2. Approval of minutes of the July 20, 2009 Committee meeting 
 
 Ruffner said that the minutes indicated the Arizona Historical Advisory 

Committee and it should read “Commission.” Minutes were approved as 
corrected.  

 
3.   Welcome 
 
 a.    Karen Churchill, Sharlot Hall Museum, new member 
 
  Chairman Gilliss welcomed the newest member of the Committee, Karen 

Churchill, Sharlot Hall Museum representative. 
 
 b.   Advisory Members 
 
 Chairman Gilliss welcomed Bill Thompson, ERAU Advisory member, and 

Mary Lin, new Advisory member from Prescott College. Gilliss 
emphasized that although advisors are listed on the roster as non-voting 
members, they are important members of the Committee and their input 
and full participation is welcomed and eagerly anticipated.   



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 2 
 
4.    Reports/Updates 
 
 a. Karen Churchard, Director, Arizona Centennial Commission (Gilliss) 
  
  Chairman Gilliss reported that Ms. Churchard was unable to attend today 

as the Governor had asked to be elsewhere, but that she has scheduled 
herself to attend next month’s meeting. Gilliss distributed a list of possible 
questions/discussion items the committee might like to have 
Ms. Churchard comment on, and the list was approved. Chairman Gilliss 
will forward the list to Ms. Churchard before the meeting so she can 
familiarize herself with the Committee’s concerns and interests. Ruffner 
suggested that as Ms. Churchard gives her presentation, more questions 
could be raised. 

  
 b.   Mission Statement (Gilliss) 
 
  Chairman Gilliss noted that the revised Mission Statement which was 

approved at the last meeting has been distributed to all Committee 
members. 

 
 c.   Frank Sente, State Centennial Stamp Project (Gilliss) 
 
  Chairman Gilliss reported that Mr. Sente has agreed to serve as Chairman 

of the City’s Stamp Project. He has asked to meet with herself and Karen 
Churchill, who has agreed to serve on the committee to assist with school 
implementation of the project.  Ann Sterling, chairman of the County 
Centennial Committee will sit in on the meeting as well, to assist in 
coordinating with the County stamp project. Gilliss said she hopes to hold 
a project meeting before next month’s Committee meeting. 

 
d. Report to City Council (Gilliss) 
 
 Chairman Gilliss also reported that she gave her report on Centennial 

Committee activities to date to the City Council.  She said that Council 
members seemed very interested although they asked no questions. She 
added that Toni Kaus, Library Director, e-mailed her after the meeting to 
inform her that the Library had an extensive list on line of all of the 
clubs/organizations in town which the Committee was welcome to use.   
Gilliss forwarded that information to Community Outreach chairman, Don 
Shaffer. 

 
 Gilliss continued that Ms. Kaus also offered the Library’s Viewerie display 

area for a Centennial display in February 2012. A brief discussion followed 
about how to make the best use of the large area and the need to identify 
people to develop the display. Chairman Gilliss suggested contacting 
George Fuller from Sharlot Hall Museum who does their displays and the 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 3 
 

possibility of committee member Thurston engaging artists from the art 
groups she is connected with.   Churchill added that she has done window 
displays.  She and Burgess agreed to serve as a committee to oversee 
the display(s). Later in the meeting, Churchill also suggested that the 
display might be developed as a school project.] 

 
e.   Tim Wiederaenders, Daily Courier/Legacy Project (Gilliss) 
 
 Chairman Gilliss reported that she and Tim Wiederaenders, Managing 

Editor of Prescott Newspapers, Inc, have been in touch about the possible 
short story/book publication project. She said that although 
Mr. Wiederaenders has been pursuing the project, he is not yet ready to 
meet with the Committee about it 

  
f.   Western Historical Symposium, 8/8 (Ruffner) 
 
 Churchill reported that the symposium was well-attended and that the 

Westerners group will be donating $5,000 to Sharlot Hall Museum as a 
result of the quality and success of the event. Shaffer, a member of that 
group, noted that this event occurs every year, and Ruffner suggested that 
it be scheduled as a Centennial activity in August 2011. 

 
 Churchill continued that the Arizona History Convention held in June, 

sponsored by the Arizona Historical Society, was also a success.  She 
noted that there is a growing interest in coming to Prescott for these types 
of events. Ruffner added that it was this group’s best attended event this 
year, and that it was their 50th anniversary year. Shaffer said he had 
approached the group’s President about having their conference in 
Prescott during the State Centennial year and that he was asked to send 
the President a letter with full information so the group could consider 
returning to Prescott in 2011 or 2012. Chairman Gilliss suggested that 
they be added to the Community Outreach list to receive communication, 
and Ruffner gave the president’s name as William Porter, a resident of 
Kingman.  She will provide Shaffer with full contact information. 

    
g.  AZ Living History Celebration, 8/22 (Ruffner) 

 
  Ruffner reported that this celebration is to be held this coming Saturday at 

Yavapai College and that it will be comprised of demonstrations and  
speakers on historical topics, including the program she developed for the 
Arizona History Convention on Yavapai, Mother of Counties, Cradle of 
Statehood. Churchill added that she would be the sidekick for Tom Collins 
in a presentation on the early social life at Fort Whipple. 

   
  Ruffner also reported that on September 12, from 4:00 to 7:00 p.m. at the 

Elks Theater, a birthday celebration will take place for the Ruffner Women 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 4 
 

which is intended to generate donations for the theater restoration.  
Everyone was invited. 

 
 Burgess reported that she recently conducted a City of Prescott walking 

tour for a group of convention and conference planners from all over the 
state who were attending a convention at the Prescott Resort. She said 
that about 14 of the 60 people attending the conference participated in the 
tour and that it was well received. She said that she subsequently 
received an e-mail from the group’s planners stating that they loved 
Prescott and that they are going to strongly recommend it as a conference 
location. She noted that the group was a new coalition of tourism led by 
Margo Christiansen, who brought them to Prescott, and that instead of 
mailing out information packets, they are providing immediately available 
information on line which they are finding works well to promote group 
participation. 

 
  Shaffer noted that Prescott has a local hotel management group, the 

Prescott Area Lodging Association, and Maurer added that the former 
chairman is still responsible for the group but that it is not currently active.  

 
 h.   County Centennial Committee Meeting, 7/27 (Ruffner/Burgess) 
  
 Chairman Gilliss said that the County Centennial Committee last month 

was held in Cottonwood and since neither she nor Ruffner attended, they 
did not have a report. 

 
5.    Logo and Website (Garvin) 
 

a. Logo: 
 

    – Guidelines for Invitations to Graphic Artists 
    
 Garvin reported that she was out of the office for almost two weeks, but 

had made a few phone calls to artists in town which have generated no 
responses. She said that, in the calls, she outlined what the Committee is 
seeking and noted that although no money would be available for 
payment, the selected artist would receive recognition for his or her 
design.  

 
 Chairman Gilliss asked if it would be possible to make an announcement 

in the press to help generate interest in the project. Garvin said that she 
had called Cindy Barks at the Courier and was told that they are currently 
spread thin. Chairman Gilliss suggested that submitting a press release 
might be helpful. 

 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 5 
 
 Garvin asked if Committee members had any guidelines to clarify what 

was being requested from the artists. Chairman Gilliss noted that at last 
month’s meeting, Committee members were asked to forward to Garvin 
any thoughts or ideas on what might be included, then Garvin was to 
circulate the suggestions received to all Committee members to be 
reviewed at this meeting. 

 
 Garvin reported that she had received suggestions from only two 

Committee members, Gilliss and Mills. Chairman Gilliss suggested that 
those may be the only ones submitted and that it may be best to move 
forward. Garvin then asked if there could be a closing date for receiving 
input.  

 
 Thurston recalled that size had been mentioned and suggested that the 

design should be submitted in an EPS format so that the size of the 
design could be manipulated.  

 
 Garvin suggested that the Library’s list of organizations mentioned earlier 

might be a place to start to generate interest in submitting designs for a 
contest.  Chairman Gilliss stated that she believed the idea of a contest 
had not been included when the committee decided to ask all artists in the 
community to submit designs. Churchill suggested that graphic design 
students from the colleges/universities be included in the invitations to 
submit designs.  

 
 Chairman Gilliss asked Garvin to put together the parameters that have 

been suggested so far and to circulate them to Committee members within 
the next few days and, during that review period, to begin identifying as 
many sources and avenues as possible -- such as the colleges, 
Thurston’s contacts and PAAHC, a press release, and so on -- for 
reaching artists with an invitation to participate.  Additional comments or 
responses from the Committee, if any, could be incorporated, and she 
could then move forward with disseminating the call for interest, by the 
end of next week. 

 
 Burgess suggested that the announcement should include an explanation 

of how the logo is to be used, such as fliers, publications, letterhead, 
buttons, T-shirts and other attire,  jewelry, coins, etc., and  that it should 
emphasize that it is for the City of Prescott Centennial Celebration, so 
potential participants won’t confuse it with the State  or County Centennial 
logo. 

 
 Churchill added that it should be made clear that the parameters, such as 

full color, black-and-white, etc. would need to vary for different 
applications or uses of the logo.  Committee members agreed, and also 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 6 
 

agreed that the focus should initially be on developing a design to be used 
in print, with other applications to be addressed later. 

 
 Garvin asked if there had been any decisions about how the logo would 

be used.  Chairman Gilliss responded that the uses just suggested by 
Burgess were likely considerations, but that no decisions have been 
made.  She noted that she intends to ask both Ms. Churchard and County 
Committee representatives if they have made such decisions or have 
recommendations, so the City might coordinate its applications with theirs.  
Garvin asked if the City legal department would need to be involved 
concerning copyright restrictions, for example, and Chairman Gilliss said 
that that was an area that would need to be explored. 

 
  Lin said that she would circulate design requirements to Prescott College 

students, however they do not return to school until October 1. She then 
asked if the Committee is seeking a logo or an illustration. She noted that 
titling the desired outcome correctly and setting guidelines for its use, 
including size, would help to clarify the appropriate level of detail in its 
design and would help the Committee to determine how to use its insignia 
in conjunction with the State and County logos.  She added that such 
information would give the artists a clearer sense of what to develop. 

 
  Chairman Gilliss said that she assumed that an illustration entails a more 

detailed design than a logo, and asked for clarification. Lin said that a logo 
is very simple and that it sums up the feeling and value statement of an 
organization. An illustration is something more of an emblem or an 
insignia, and gives information about an event, but does not necessarily 
depict an event graphically. She observed that what the Committee has 
been discussing sounds like an illustration. Garvin said she didn’t think the 
design could be an illustration because of the way it is to be used. She 
noted that the State logo is very simplistic. 

 
  Ezell arrived at this time (1:39 p.m.) 
 
  Chairman Gilliss recapped that the Committee is to receive from Garvin, in 

the next day or two, the design parameters that have been suggested so 
far, and asked committee members to respond to Garvin with any 
additional suggestions by the end of the week.  In the meantime, Garvin 
would identify as many groups in the area as possible that might be 
interested in participating, and be ready to send an invitational 
announcement out early next week. 

 
 
 
 
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 7 
 

b. Website 
 
    – Development of Page on City Website   
    
 Burgess reported that she and Cat Moody are working together on 

development of the City’s Centennial web site.  She added that Moody will 
be the City’s Historic Preservation Specialist starting January 1, 2010 and 
that she is also the city’s webmaster. Burgess continued that a booklet 
she had prepared under a federal grant entitled “Property Owners’ Guide 
to Historic Districts” includes a timeline that she and Moody are expanding 
for use on the Centennial web site. She and Moody are identifying photos, 
maps, etc. to illustrate each entry in the timeline. She said that the work 
can currently be viewed under the History sections on the City’s webpage 
and added that if a separate Centennial web site were to be developed for 
the City, it would be developed by Moody. Burgess also noted that the 
County’s system and City’s were not compatible, but that the two can be 
linked. 

 
 Ruffner asked if the time line would be starting with the planting of the 

Statehood Tree and Burgess responded that at this time that event is not 
included.  She continued that Moody has just begun laying out the content 
and that that event could be included by Committee decision. Chairman 
Gilliss asked for a recommendation from Burgess who responded that she 
has not yet considered that idea but noted that the area for text in the 
timeline is very limited. 

 
 Churchill stated that she thought the tree planting was important, but that 

even more important, in her mind, was the Territorial history of Prescott 
from 1864 to 1912. [Later in the meeting she stated that she had run 
across an early Sharlot Hall Museum document which includes an 
excellent time line and that she would send a copy of it to Burgess.]  
Burgess acknowledged that the current timeline covers the period referred 
to by Churchill. She noted that it begins with 1812 and that the Territorial 
years are grayed, to signify the difference between that history and 
Statehood history. 

 
 Chairman Gilliss suggested that Churchill work with Burgess, and asked 

Burgess to report next month on the progress of the project. Chairman 
Gilliss stated that at some point the Committee would likely be interested 
in becoming more knowledgeable about and involved with work on the 
City’s website. Burgess said that she and Moody are currently looking at 
this as a separate project, but that it would ultimately link with the City’s 
Centennial page. 

 
 
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 8 
 
6.    Community Outreach Committee (Shaffer) 

 
a.  Progress on Community e-mail List  
 
 Shaffer reported that he now has two ladies working with him on the 

Community e-mail list, Helen Wright and Jean Phillips.  He also reported 
that next week he will be making a presentation to a professional business 
group. 

 
b. Editing of Invitation/Information to be disseminated  
 
c. Communication Time Table 
 
 Shaffer continued that he will develop a timeline for dissemination of 

information to the community, and Chairman Gilliss reiterated that the 
initial message content would be a request to be put on the City’s e-mail 
list to receive information if interested in participating in the Centennial and 
that more detailed information would go out later to those who indicated 
interest. Gilliss said she is looking forward to getting detailed information 
from Karen Churchard such as clarity on how to apply for legacy projects, 
for example, which might be helpful in later mailings.  

 
 Ruffner suggested that the Monday Club be added to the e-mail list and 

also to the list of August celebrations. 
 
 Shaffer noted that there has also been discussion of the Lions Club 

planting another tree on another corner on the downtown square. 
 

7.    Establishment/Roles of Sub-Committees (Gilliss) 
 
Chairman Gilliss said that along with the agenda, drafts of roles/responsibilities 
for sub-committees had been distributed.  She explained that she had developed 
the sub-committee descriptions for the purpose of identifying the means to 
accomplish the work and achieve the results required by the City Resolution.  
 
Sub-Committee titles are: 
 
 a.. Community Outreach 

b.  Legacy Projects 
 c. Local Events 

  d. Media 
 e. Executive 
 f. State Centennial Stamp Project 

 
Garvin left at this time (2:12 p.m.) 
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 9 
 

Gilliss briefly reviewed each sub-committee description explaining her rationale 
for its basis, the tasks described, and the membership suggested. She 
encouraged members to review the drafts and to be prepared to make 
suggestions and/or corrections, including committee membership, for discussion 
at the next meeting. 
 
Regarding the Community Outreach Sub-Committee, Lin suggested that groups 
interested in natural environments, such as a hundred years of human habitation, 
wildlife, cultural aspects, ethno-graphics, etc. be included, and she stated that 
Prescott College could help facilitate inclusion of those interests. Chairman 
Gilliss strongly supported the suggestion, stating that the inclusion of every 
interest possible would enhance overall participation in Centennial activities. Lin 
suggested that they communicate with the Green to Gold Business Network as 
well. Chairman Gilliss asked Lin to give the contact information for that group to 
Shaffer. 
 

 Lin left the meeting at this time (2:20 p.m.) 
 
Burgess said that in conjunction with the initial invitation letter to be sent out by 
Shaffer’s committee, a concise one-page, three-fold brochure should be 
developed which would inform interested parties about the parameters for City 
Centennial projects, provide dates, etc.  She added that it should be done soon 
and that the City logo would be needed to identify the flyer as a City Centennial 
publication. 

 
 Chairman Gilliss suggested that with the two-phase community outreach plan 

described earlier, the second communication could include the flyer described by 
Burgess. That would allow a little more time for its development.   She added that 
the publication would need to be designed for e-mailing, however, due to lack of 
money for postage. 

 
 Regarding the Local Project Sub-Committee, which includes the responsibility for 

engaging and scheduling local activities throughout the Centennial Celebration, 
Gilliss referred to an attached rough-draft timeline suggesting currently known 
events that might become Centennial activities. She noted that she has 
accumulated more data since the attached list was circulated, which she will 
share with that committee.  [Later in the meeting, Gilliss also noted that she has 
contacts indicated that former President Richard Nixon’s brother, Ed, would be 
willing to participate in a Centennial event, since the Nixons once resided in 
Prescott. Also the sons of Barry Goldwater could be available. Ruffner suggested 
including their sister as well.] 
 
Discussion was then held on identifying the exact date of the Centennial 
Celebration period so that that information can be disseminated. Ezell said that 
groups she is involved with want to know the specific celebration time frame so 
they can plan accordingly. After some discussion, the consensus of Committee 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 10 
 

members was that the official Centennial Year will be February 2011 through 
February 2012, and that the committee will focus its support primarily on 
activities taking place within that time frame; however Centennial activities taking 
place outside of that time frame would not be discouraged. It was noted that the 
celebration year could begin with a kick-off at the Elks Theater, as could a 
culminating activity. 
  
Thompson supported the notion of identifying specific celebration dates, saying it 
will help both the Committee and participants to focus their efforts. He stated that 
if events were spread out, the focus would become diluted.  He also noted that it 
is important to stay apprised of State and County events and to avoid possible 
competitive activities. He said that perhaps some of the City’s events could 
become pinnacle points for County and State events as well, such as the Elks 
event. 
    

 To summarize, Ezell asked for clarification on the date for the Fourth of July 
parade. It was understood that a rodeo parade held in July of 2011 would be 
within the state designated period for promoting centennial events. Note: It was 
previously agreed that organizations could hold events outside that period. 

 
 Regarding Sub-Committee membership, Chairman Gilliss reminded the group 

that it is not realistic to expect sub-committee members to take on all the tasks 
themselves. She encouraged all sub-committees, such as the media sub-
committee, for example, to engage members of the community who have 
expertise and involvements in each area to assist as sub-committee members. 
Burke reminded everyone to avoid having more than half of sub-committee 
membership be comprised of Centennial committee members, as we are 
required to follow Open Meeting Law requirements.  It was noted that most sub-
committees include only two city-appointed committee members, so a minimum 
of three community members on each is recommended. 

 
 Ruffner said that she still has the concept and desire to prepare a complete 

history of Prescott and statehood in a flier format, to be printed in great 
quantities. Chairman Gilliss that such a publication might likely qualify as a 
Legacy Project. Burgess noted that it would be necessary to get it sponsored for 
printing. 

 
8.    Assistance from Advisory Members (Gilliss) 
  
 This topic was addressed at the opening of the meeting. 
 
9.  Adjournment 
 
 In preparation for adjournment, Chairman Gilliss asked the group if they 

preferred to continue receiving meeting minutes along with the next meeting’s 
agenda, to the relate to the next meeting, or if they would prefer to get them 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of August 17, 2009  Page 11 
 

sooner to review the discussion and tasks to be addressed.  The consensus was 
that receiving minutes as soon after the meeting as possible was preferred.  
Burke agreed to the request and stated that she would circulate minutes as soon 
after the meeting as possible.   

 
 There being no further business to be discussed, the meeting of the Prescott: 

The Arizona’s Centennial City Committee of August 17, 2009 adjourned at 
2:40 p.m. 

 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Dr. Barbara Gilliss, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lindsey Mills, Secretary 
 
 


